
 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Agenda - Monday, October 02, 2023 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Invocation given by Director Danny Jewell 

Pledge of Allegiance led by Finance Director TyRhonda Henderson  

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

A limit of five (5) minutes per person is allotted for citizens to express their concerns to the 

Board of Directors, with a maximum of fifty (50) minutes reserved for Citizens 

Communication.   

Please fill out a Citizen Communication Card with your name and contact information for the 

City Clerk's records. 

PRESENTATION(S) 

1. Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service Awards. (ADMIN)  

2. Proclamation declaring October 8th – 14th, 2023, as Black Restaurant Week. (BOD) (This 

proclamation added at the request of Director Harris) 

CONSENT 

3. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting September 18, 2023. (CCD) City Clerk 

Heather Soyars 

4. Adopt a Resolution appointing City Manager Robert Thompson to the Texarkana, Arkansas 

Public Employee Retirement System (TAPERS). (CCD) City Clerk Heather Soyars 

5. Adopt a Resolution to set the date for a public hearing concerning the abandonment of an 

undeveloped right-of-way of certain portions of land east of Manor Way Road, west of 

Summit Drive and Pine Hill Circle, north of Tennessee Road, and south of Fortune Lane. 

Ward 1 (Fricks) (PWD-Planning) City Planner Jamie Finley     

6. Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract with Kampco, Inc., 

for the Delaware Street Replace/Upsize Water Main Project. (TWU) Executive Director Gary 

Smith  



 

7. Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to purchase an F150 pick-up truck from 

McLarty Ford. (PWD) Public Works Director Tyler Richards  

8. Adopt a Resolution approving the reimbursement of $33,000.00 to the Texarkana Regional 

Airport from American Rescue Act Funds. (FIN) Finance Director TyRhonda Henderson   

ACTION ITEMS 

No Items 

NON-ACTION ITEMS 

9. Adopt an Ordinance amending the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, Code of Ordinances Chapter 

9-7, for the sale and discharge of fireworks for any person under the age of 18 years old. 

(TAPD) Police Chief Michael Kramm 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' COMMENTARY  

NEXT MEETING DATE: Monday, October 16, 2023 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

10. Adopt a Resolution appointing three (3) members of the Board of Directors to the Ark-Tex 

Council of Governments (ATCOG). (CCD) City Clerk Heather Soyars 

11. Adopt a Resolution making appointments to the Advertising and Promotion Commission 

(A&P). (CCD) City Clerk Heather Soyars 

ADJOURN 

 

2023 City Calendar 

Gateway Farmers Market - Open Tuesdays, Thursdays, Saturdays - 7AM- Noon 

National Night Out - Tuesday, October 3rd 

Destination Downtown - Friday, October 13, 2023 

GTYP - Friday, October 13, 2023 

Oktoberfest - Saturday, October 14, 2023 

Priscilla Block Concert - Friday, October 20, 2023 

Halloween Event - Saturday, October 28, 2023 

Universal Vibe - Saturday, November 4th - 10AM - 10PM 

Gateway Farmers Market Holiday Market - Saturday, November 18th - 10AM - 2PM 

Founders’ Week Celebration – December 4th – 10th 

 

Texarkana Rec Center Calendar 

Ageless Grace - Mondays – 2PM – 3PM 

Gym Open - Mondays, Wednesdays & Fridays – 8AM - 7PM & Saturdays - 8AM – Noon 

Dance Fitness - Tuesdays - 6PM & Saturdays - 11AM 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service 

Awards. (ADMIN)  

AGENDA DATE: October 2, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Presentation 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk Department 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Presentation of employee service awards. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: 

 

 

 

 

Employee Service Awards: 

 

Casey Tillett TAFD 5 Years 

Steven Durham TAFD 15 Years 

Michael Richardson TAFD 25 Years 

Dylan McCrary TAPD 5 Years 

Tom Briggs TAPD 20 Years 

   
 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

N/A 

EXHIBITS: None 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Proclamation declaring October 8th – 14th, 2023, as Black Restaurant 

Week. (BOD) (This proclamation added at the request of Director 

Harris) 

AGENDA DATE: September 18, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Proclamation 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars 

REQUEST: Proclamation 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Black Restaurant Week 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

N/A 

EXHIBITS: Proclamation  

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting September 18, 2023. 

(CCD) City Clerk Heather Soyars 

AGENDA DATE: October 2, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Minutes 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk Department 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Approval of meeting minutes. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Approval of meeting minutes 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

EXHIBITS: Meeting minutes. 

 



 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Minutes - Monday, September 18, 2023 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Assistant Mayor Terry Roberts called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

PRESENT: Assistant Mayor Ward 1 Terry Roberts, Ward 2 Director Laney Harris, Ward 3 

Director Steven Hollibush, Ward 4 Director Ulysses Brewer, Ward 5 Danny Jewell, and Ward 6 

Director Jeff Hart.  

ALSO, PRESENT: City Manager Robert Thompson, City Attorney Joshua Potter, City Clerk 

Heather Soyars, and Deputy City Clerk Jenny Narens.  

ABSENT: Mayor Allen Brown. 

Invocation given by Director Ulysses Brewer.  

Pledge of Allegiance led by District Court Karen Reed. 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

Mary McQueen, 708 Pinehurst Street, asked if the Public Works Department would come back 

and finish cutting down the overgrown lot next door to her. 

David Peavy, 105 Olive Street, spoke about the restaurant permit ordinance that was tabled at a 

previous meeting.   

Laney Harris, 2005 Stephanie Street, asked if the City could change the process of a planned unit 

development zoning request.    

PRESENTATION(S) 

1. John Wilkerson, General Counsel for Arkansas Municipal League presented Senator Jimmy 

Hickey, Jr., and Representative Carol Dalby with the Distinguished Legislative Award. 

2. Proclamation presented to IT Director Brandon Uselton for IT Professionals Day, September 

20, 2023. 

3. Proclamation presented to Personnel Administrator Rachel Hopkins for Personnel/Human 

Resources Day, September 26, 2023. 

4. Presentation given by CEO, Dave Snavely regarding LifeNet. (ADMIN) Finance Director 

TyRhonda Henderson  



 

*Director Hollibush left the Board room at 6:25 PM and returned at 6:27 PM.* 

CONSENT 

Director Hollibush made the motion to adopt the Consent agenda, Seconded by Director Hart.  The 

motion carried and the following items were approved:  

5. Approval of the minutes of the special called meeting September 5, 2023, and the regular 

meeting September 5, 2023. (CCD) City Clerk Heather Soyars 

6. Resolution No. 2023-80 authorized the City Manager to enter into a contract with Light 

Direction and Ranging (LiDAR) remote sensing technology from Pictometry International 

Corp. dba EagleView. (TWU) Executive Director Gary Smith  

7. Resolution No. 2023-81 authorized the City Manager to enter into an interlocal agreement 

with Texarkana Water Utilities and Miller County, approving a contract with Pictomerty 

International Corp. dba EagleView Technologies to provide digital aerial photography. 

(TWU) Executive Director Gary Smith  

REGULAR 

8. Resolution No. 2023-82 accepted the contract for Robert Thompson as the new City Manager. 

(FIN) Finance Director TyRhonda Henderson   

After a brief discussion, the motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Hollibsuh, Seconded 

by Director Hart. 

Voting Yea: Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director Brewer, 

Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 6-0 and the Assistant Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

 

9. Resolution No. 2023-83 approved the Texarkana Water Utilities (TWU) FY2023-2024 

Budget.  (TWU) Executive Director Gary Smith and Finance Director Tricia Briggs 

After a brief discussion, the motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Hart, Seconded by 

Director Brewer. 

Voting Yea: Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director Brewer, 

Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 6-0 and the Assistant Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

 

10. Resolution No. 2023-84 accepted the year end 2022 Audit Report. (FIN) Finance Director 

TyRhonda Henderson 

After a brief discussion, the motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Hart, Seconded by 

Director Hollibush. 

Voting Yea: Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director Brewer, 

Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  



 

The motion carried 6-0 and the Assistant Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' COMMENTARY  

Director Hart asked for help from the citizens in locating Sawyer Siau who went missing.  He said 

if there was any information regarding him, please contact the Miller County Sherif’s office to 

help this family find closure.  Director Hart asked the local businesses to please post a flyer about 

the missing man in their windows.    

Director Hollibush announced this year’s National Night Out would be October 2, 2023, and it 

would be sponsored by Sparklight.  

Director Brewer wanted to let the citizens know to have full access to the Rec Center, they could 

fill out an application and purchase a membership.   

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Board of Directors stated they did not need to go into executive session to discuss this item.  

11. Resolution No. 2023-85 appointed Chead Blue and Jamie Finley to the City Beautiful 

Commission. (CCD) City Clerk Heather Soyars 

Motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Hard, Seconded by Director Brewer. 

Voting Yea: Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director Brewer, 

Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 6-0 and the Assistant Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

NEXT MEETING DATE:  Monday, October 2, 2023 

ADJOURN 

Motion to adjourn made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Brewer.  

Voting Yea: Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director Brewer, 

Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 6-0 and the meeting adjourned at 7:02 PM.  

APPROVED this the 2nd day of October 2023. 

 

____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

____________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution appointing City Manager Robert Thompson to the 

Texarkana, Arkansas Public Employee Retirement System (TAPERS). 

(CCD) City Clerk Heather Soyars 

AGENDA DATE: October 2, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars 

REQUEST: Appointment to TAPERS 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: NA 

SUMMARY: Appointment to TAPERS 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: NA 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: NA  

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

NA 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Manager and staff recommend approval. 

EXHIBITS: Resolutions 

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

WHEREAS, a vacancy exist on the Texarkana, Arkansas Public Employee 

Retirement System (TAPERS); and 

 WHEREAS, it is necessary that an appointment be made to fill the vacant position;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the following appointment to TAPERS is hereby approved: 

 

Applicant Term 

Robert Thompson No Term 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 2nd day of October 2023.   

 

       ______________________________ 

               Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 

 



EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM COMMITTEE 

 
Authorized by Texarkana, Arkansas Code 18-1---7 

 

 

 Appointment Term 

   

PeTree Banks 

TAPD – Docket Clerk 

pbanks@txkusa.org 

Resolution No. 2022-57  

Appointment 

 

1 

   

Dara Cornett 

Bi-State Building Finance 

903-798-3234 

dcornett@txkusa.org 

Resolution No. 2021-14 

Appointment 

 

1 

   

Mayor Allen Brown 

4 Hickory Drive 

870-773-1923 

ab@allenbrownmayor.com 

Resolution No. 2021-1 

Appointment 

 

1 

   

Director Laney Harris 

2005 Stephanie  

903-244-2298 

Laneyharris.ward2@yahoo.com 

Resolution No. 2021-1 

Appointment 

 

1 

   

E. Jay Ellington  

216 Walnut Street 

870-779-4926 

Resolution No. 2021-30 

Appointment   

 

1 

 

mailto:pbanks@txkusa.org


 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution to set the date for a public hearing concerning the 

abandonment of an undeveloped right-of-way of certain portions of land 

east of Manor Way Road, west of Summit Drive and Pine Hill Circle, 

north of Tennessee Road, and south of Fortune Lane. Ward 1 (Fricks) 

(PWD-Planning) City Planner Jamie Finley     

AGENDA DATE: October 2, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: PWD-Planning  

PREPARED BY: Jamie Finley, City Planner 

REQUEST: Set a date for a public hearing to vacate an undeveloped right-of-way 

dedicated to the public for access on a tract of land located east of Manor 

Way Road, west of Summit Drive and Pine Hill Circle, north of 

Tennessee Road and south of Fortune Lane in Wootens 2nd Subdivision.   

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: The Planning Commission requested October 16, 2023, for a public 

hearing regarding the recommendation of vacating a right-of-way 

dedicated to public for access on a tract of land located east of Manor 

Way Road, west of Summit Drive and Pine Hill Circle, north of 

Tennessee Road and south of Fortune Lane in Wootens 2nd Subdivision.  

EXPENSE REQUIRED: 0 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: 0 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

0 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend approval  

EXHIBITS: Resolution, Petition, Memo to City Manager, Map 

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

WHEREAS, Clay Fricks has petitioned for abandonment of an undeveloped 

public right-of-way of certain portions of land located east of Manor Way Road, west of 

Summit Drive and Pine Hill Circle, north of Tennessee Road, and south of Fortune Lane; 

and 

WHEREAS, Arkansas law provides for a public hearing prior to abandonment of 

a public right-of-way; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager and staff recommend approval;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that a public hearing is hereby set for October 16, 2023, at 6:00 

p.m. to receive comments regarding the petition to abandon the above-described right-of 

-way. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 2nd day of October 2023. 

 
 

 
       ______________________________ 

           Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 

 



 



 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF TEXARKANA ARKANSAS 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
216 WALNUT ST 71854-6024 
P O BOX 2711 TEXARKANA ARKANSAS 75504-2711 
PHONE (870) 779-4971 – FAX (870) 773-2395 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: Robert Thompson, City Manager 
  
FROM: Jamie Finley, City Planner 
  
DATE:  September 13, 2023  

 
SUBJECT:  Board of Directors Agenda item for 10-02-2023, Request a public 

hearing to vacate a dedicated public access easement (ROW) – 
Petition by Clay Fricks, 6607 Tennessee Road, Texarkana, AR 
71854, to abandon an undeveloped public right-of-way.   
 

LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION: 
 

Penny Lou Lane from Summit Drive to undeveloped Fortune Lane. 
ROW lies East of Block 22/Lots 1-10 of WOOTEN’S 2ND lying in 
Section 25, Township 15, Range 28, Texarkana, Miller County, 
Arkansas. Block 23/Lots 1-7 and Block 25/Lots 7-9 of WOOTENS 
2ND lying in Section 25, Township 15S, Range 28W, Texarkana, 
Miller County, Arkansas.  ROW is approximately 60’ wide, 1354’ in 
length and contains .1.89 acres more or less. 
 
Duke’s Drive from Summit Drive to Manor Way Road. ROW lies 
South of Block 22/Lots 6-10 of WOOTENS 2nd lying in Section 25, 
Township 15, Range 28, Texarkana, Miller County, Arkansas.  
ROW is approximately 60’ wide, 572’ in length and contains .81 
acres more or less. 
 
Sunset Drive from Manor Way Road to undeveloped Penny Lou 
Lane.  ROW lies South of Block 23/Lots 6-10 of WOOTENS 2nd lying 
in Section 25, Township 15S, Range 28W Texarkana, Miller County, 
Arkansas. ROW is approximately 60’ wide, 520’ in length and 
contains .68 acres more or less. 
 

 
REASON FOR 
REQUEST: 

The applicant, his brother and Don and Kim Cowan own all property 
adjacent to the specified ROW’s and wish to abandon the ROW in 
order to unify the property. 
 

 



 
 
 

 

EXISTING LAND 
USES: 
 

Site: ROW 
North: Residential and wooded 
East:  Residential and wooded 
South:  Residential and wooded 
West:  Residential and wooded 

  
EXISTING ZONING: Site: R-1 Rural residential  

North: R-1 Rural residential 
East: R-1 Rural residential 
South: R-1 Rural residential  
West: R-1 Rural residential 

 
COMPATIBILITY 
WITH EXISTING 
ZONING: 
 

The large rural tracts of land have only individual single-family 
homes with many streets that were platted and have not been 
developed and no plans know for doing additional development of 
the privately owned lots.  All property adjacent to the abandonment 
has adjacent ownership to developed and undeveloped right of way 
for access.     
   

UTILITIES & TRANSPORTATION NETWORK: 
  

This property is currently zoned R-1 Rural residential and has no 
utilities located in the ROW.  
 
Responses from utility companies when asked if they objected to 
the abandonment request or requested an easement: 
 
Summit Utilities – Brandon Brooks, September 11, 2020 

“I have copied our maps and circled where I think your maps shows 

the abandonment.  If I’m correct we are clear.”   
 
Response by Jamie Finley, City Planner – September 11, 2023 

“Yes, that is correct.” 

 
AEP Swepco – Cabe C. Bonner, August 28, 2023: 
 “This is outside of SWEPCO’s service territory.” 
 

REA – David McDowell, September 6, 2023 
“Southwest Arkansas Electric (REA) will not be using the 
easements shown on the map and agrees to abandon them.” 
 
Windstream – Michael A. Latham, September 5, 2023:   
“Windstream follows SWREA power lines in this area.” 

 
 
 



 
 
 

 

 
Cableone/Sparklight – Joe Langley, August 28, 2023: 
“We do have lines along this easement/ROW, and we would need 
to follow the power company in whatever direction they plan to 
move.” 

 
TWU – Kenneth L. Icenhower, August 28, 2023: 
“At this time, no utility extensions into those areas are 
planned.  Therefore, the Utility has no objections to 
Abandon/Vacate that ROW.” 
 

  
CONFORMANCE WITH APPLICABLE ORDINANCES AND/OR STATE STATUTES: 
 
 The Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated (14-56-422B) requires the 

following – “All plans, recommended ordinances, and regulations 
shall be adopted through the following procedure for adoption of 
plans and regulations: 
 

(1)  (A) The Planning Commission shall hold a public hearing on  
       the plans, ordinances, and regulations proposed under this  
       subchapter. 
 

 (B)  Notice of public hearing shall be published in a  
 newspaper of general circulation in the city, at least (1) time  
 fifteen days prior to the hearing. 

 
(2)  Following the public hearing, proposed plans may be 

 adopted, and proposed ordinance and regulations may be 
 recommended as presented, or in modified form, by a  
 majority vote of the entire commission.   

 
(3)  Following it adoption of plans and recommendation of 

 ordinances and regulations, the commission shall certify 
 adopted plans of recommended ordinances of and 
 regulations to the legislative body of the city for its adoption. 

 
(4) The legislative body of the city may return the plans and 

recommended ordinances and regulations to the 
commission for further study or rectification, or, by a majority 
vote of the entire membership, may, by ordinance or 
resolution, adopt the plans and recommended ordinances or 
regulations submitted by the commission.  However, nothing 
in this subchapter shall be construed to limit the city board’s 
authority to recall the ordinances and resolutions by a vote 
of a majority of the council. 
 



 
 
 

 

 

  
(5)  Following adoption by the legislative body, the adopted    

            plans, ordinances, and regulations shall be filed in the  
            office of the City Clerk.  The City Clerk shall file, with the 
            county recorder of the counties in which territorial 
            jurisdiction is being exercised such plans, ordinances, and 
            regulations as pertain to the territory beyond the corporate  
            limits.  
 
The required notice was published in the Sunday, August 27, 2023, 
edition of the Texarkana Gazette.   
 
ROW abandonments do not require additional notification as all 
adjacent property owners are petitioners.   

   
OPPOSITION: None  

 
PLANNING COMMISSION CERTIFICATION: 
 
The Planning Commission met on September 12, 2023, and certified recommendation to 
abandon the unused, undeveloped public easement described previously in this document 
under “Legal Description”.  A motion was made by Vice-Chairperson Mike Jones seconded 
by Commissioner Clyde “Boots” Thomas with a roll call vote of 6-0, with one absence.   
  

Anderson Neal, Chairperson          Yes 
Mike Jones, Vice Chairperson        Yes 
Adger Smith                                    Yes 
Bertha Dunn                                    Yes 
Jason Dupree                                  Yes   
Randall Hickerson                            Absent 
Boots Thomas                                  Yes 

  
BOARD ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

 

  
 The City Board is requested to: 

 

Adopt a resolution to set a date for a hearing on October 2, 2023.  
 

Hold a public hearing October 16, 2023. 
 

 To abandon the ROW, the Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated 
requires every ordinance to be read three times before adoption.  
These three readings may all occur at the same meeting or at the 
second and third subsequent meetings after the first reading of the 
ordinance.   



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract 

with Kampco, Inc., for the Delaware Street Replace/Upsize Water Main 

Project. (TWU) Executive Director Gary Smith  

AGENDA DATE: October 2, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Texarkana Water Utilities 

PREPARED BY: Gary Smith, P.E., Executive Director 

REQUEST: Enter into a contract for the Delaware Street Replace/Upsize Water Main 

Project. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Enter into a contract for the Delaware Street Replace/Upsize Water Main 

Project in an amount not to exceed $239,244.73. Bids were received 

ATTH 01 Tuesday, September 19, 2023, for the Delaware Street 

Replace/Upsize Water Main Project.  Three contractors bid on the 

project.  Kampco, Inc., of Texarkana, Arkansas, was the apparent low 

bidder with a low Base Bid of $239,244.73 ATTH 02.  This project 

consists of replacing approximately 1,090 linear feet of two-inch (2”) 

water main with six-inch (6”) water main, installing seven valves, one 

fire hydrant, upgrading 16 water meters, and all associated work and 

appurtenances. $275,000.00 is budgeted for this project with 

$150,000.00 budgeted in the Utility’s 2022-2023 Budget and $125,000 

budgeted in the Utility’s 2023-2024 budget.         

 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $239,244.73 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $239,244.73 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$239,244.73 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Utility staff recommends approval. The contract has been reviewed and 

approved by the City Attorney. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution, ATTH 01 Bid Summary, and ATTH 02 Bid Tabulation 

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

WHEREAS, after proper advertisement, a low bid in the amount of $239,244.73 

was submitted to Texarkana Water Utilities (TWU) by Kampco, Inc., for the Delaware 

Street Replace/Upsize Water Main Project (consisting of replacing approximately 1,090 

linear feet of two-inch (2”) water main with six-inch (6”) water main, installing seven water 

valves, one fire hydrant, upgrading 16 water meters, and all associated work and 

appurtenances); and 

WHEREAS, $275,000.00 is budgeted for this project with $150,000.00 budgeted 

in the TWU 2022-2023 Budget and $125,000.00 budgeted in the TWU 2023-2024 Budget; 

and   

 WHEREAS, the City Manager and Utility staff recommend approval;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of 

Texarkana, Arkansas, that the City Manager is authorized to enter a contract with Kampco, 

Inc., for the purposes set forth above with funding from the sources so indicated.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 2nd day of October 2023.   

 

       _____________________________ 

             AllenL.Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 





Bid Tabulation

Delaware ST Replace/Upsize

Water Main (2" to 6")

Project No. 61-000-135157-A152002

September 19, 2023

Item Quantity Unit Description Unit Price Total Bid Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

1 1 LS Mobilization, Bonds, & Submittals $7,308.70 $7,308.70 $17,500.00 $17,500.00 $18,530.00 $18,530.00

2 11 STA Right of Way Preparation $289.58 $3,185.38 $1,200.00 $13,200.00 $625.00 $6,875.00

3 896 LF 6" PVC C-900 Water Pipe by Open Cut $92.08 $82,503.68 $52.00 $46,592.00 $85.00 $76,160.00

4 194 LF 6" PVC C-900 Water Pipe by Bore $92.03 $17,853.82 $155.00 $30,070.00 $135.00 $26,190.00

5 3 EA 6"X6" Tapping Sleeve and Valve $5,484.53 $16,453.59 $5,500.00 $16,500.00 $7,160.00 $21,480.00

6 1 EA 8"X6" Tapping Sleeve and Valve $5,590.54 $5,590.54 $5,800.00 $5,800.00 $7,950.00 $7,950.00

7 1 EA 12"X6" Tapping Sleeve and Valve $5,981.50 $5,981.50 $6,700.00 $6,700.00 $9,850.00 $9,850.00

8 2 EA 6"X6"X6" Tee and Valves $4,973.16 $9,946.32 $4,300.00 $8,600.00 $4,500.00 $9,000.00

9 1 EA Fire Hydrant and Assembly $6,991.54 $6,991.54 $9,800.00 $9,800.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00

10 1 EA Remove and Replace Existing Fire Hydrant Assembly $7,541.76 $7,541.76 $3,900.00 $3,900.00 $6,700.00 $6,700.00

11 7 EA Install 5/8" Short Service Water Meter $1,645.34 $11,517.38 $2,600.00 $18,200.00 $1,000.00 $7,000.00

12 8 EA Install 5/8" Long Service Water Meter $2,653.12 $21,224.96 $4,300.00 $34,400.00 $3,000.00 $24,000.00

13 1 EA Install 1" Short Service Water Meter $2,369.89 $2,369.89 $3,700.00 $3,700.00 $1,900.00 $1,900.00

14 19 EA Remove Existing Wate Meter Boxes $579.18 $11,004.42 $700.00 $13,300.00 $450.00 $8,550.00

15 3 EA Cut, Plug and Abandon Existing 6" Water main $1,216.12 $3,648.36 $2,900.00 $8,700.00 $900.00 $2,700.00

16 2 EA Cut, Plug and Abandon Existing 2" Water Main $1,191.32 $2,382.64 $2,700.00 $5,400.00 $850.00 $1,700.00

17 18.59 SY Remove and Repair Existing Asphalt Pavement $361.99 $6,729.39 $260.00 $4,833.40 $300.00 $5,577.00

18 6 LF Remove and Replace Curb and Gutter $289.59 $1,737.54 $430.00 $2,580.00 $150.00 $900.00

19 1 LS Traffic Control, Signage and Barricades $1,447.96 $1,447.96 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

20 1 LS Labor & Materials to Clean and Test Water Mains $2,895.92 $2,895.92 $7,100.00 $7,100.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00

21 1969 SY Cellulose Fiber Mulch and Seed Affected Areas $2.08 $4,095.52 $10.00 $19,690.00 $2.50 $4,922.50

22 1 LS Trench Protection $5,385.96 $5,385.96 $8,400.00 $8,400.00 $500.00 $500.00

23 1 LS Maintain All Erosion Control Measures $1,447.96 $1,447.96 $8,400.00 $8,400.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00

TOTAL BASE BID $239,244.73 $296,865.40 $255,484.50

BASE BID:

Barnwell, Ind.

Texarkana, AR

RBIS, LLC

Texarkana, TX

Certified Correct

_______________________________________

Prepared by Len McBride, E.I.T.

Kampco, Inc.

Texarkana, AR

Len McBride, Design Engineer, TWU



ATTH 01 

  

 Bid Summary 
 
 

Delaware St. Replace/Upsize Water Main 
 

2:00 P.M. Tuesday, September 19, 2023 
 
 
 

                                    Base Bid   
 

1. RBIS, LLC   $ 296,865.40   
Texarkana, Arkansas   
 

2. Kampco, Inc.   $ 239,244.73   
Texarkana, Arkansas  
 

3. Barnwell Industries   $ 255,484.50   
Queen City, Texas   
 

4. HE Wright Co.   No Bid   
Texarkana, Texas  
 
 
  
 
 
 
                    Time First Bid Opened:  2:00 P.M  
 
                    Number of Bidders:  3 
 
                    Apparent Low Bidder:  Kampco, Inc.  
 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to purchase an F150 

pick-up truck from McLarty Ford. (PWD) Public Works Director Tyler 

Richards  

AGENDA DATE: October 2, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works Department 

PREPARED BY: Tracie Lee, Assistant Public Works Director 

REQUEST: Authorize the City Manager to purchase an F150 pick-up truck from 

McLarty Ford. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: A resolution authorizing the purchase of an F150 pick-up truck from 

McLarty Ford in the amount of thirty-four thousand fifty-seven dollars 

and seventy-five cents ($34,057.75). 

The City requested three written bids, and they received them from 

McLarty Ford, Hope Auto Company Inc., and South West Auto 

Collection for an F150 pick-up truck. The below three bids were 

received. 

McLarty Ford           $34,057.75 

Hope Auto                $36,225.00 

SW Auto                  $36,655.00 

The authorization of this purchase meets all bidding requirements. Funds 

were budgeted and are available for the purchase. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $34,057.75  

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $34.057.75 (Streets Capital Outlay) 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$0.00 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution, Bid Ad and McLarty Ford Bid. 

 

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

WHEREAS, after advertisement, a low bid in the amount of $34,057.75 was submitted to 

the Public Works Department by McLarty Ford, for the purchase of an F150 pick-up truck; and 

 WHEREAS, funds for the purchase of the F150 pick-up truck were budgeted and are 

available in the Streets Capital Outlay fund; and 

 WHEREAS, the authorization of this purchase meets all bidding requirements; and  

 WHEREAS, the City Manager and staff recommend approval;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City of 

Texarkana, Arkansas, that the City Manager is authorized to purchase an F150 pick-up truck from 

McLarty Ford for the purpose and in the amount set forth above. 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 2nd day of October 2023.   

 

       _________________________________ 

                  Allen Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 

 









 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution approving the reimbursement of $33,000.00 to the 

Texarkana Regional Airport from American Rescue Act Funds. (FIN) 

Finance Director TyRhonda Henderson   

AGENDA DATE: October 2, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Finance Department 

PREPARED BY: TyRhonda Henderson, Finance Director  

REQUEST: N/A 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: The American Rescue Act Fund was approved by the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas Board of Directors on December 20, 2021, with Resolution 

No. 2021-65. This budget allocated $972,090 in 2021, and the remaining 

$656,637 in 2022. Of the total $1,628,727.00, $579,667.18 has been 

spent. The purpose of this agenda item is to approve the reimbursement 

of $33,000 to the Texarkana Regional Airport for construction in 

connection with the Terminal Parking Lot. As this would be considered 

a general governmental service, it is eligible for reimbursement due to 

the City receiving less than $10 million from the American Rescue Plan 

Act.     

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $33,000.00 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $33,000.00 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$0 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend approval 

EXHIBITS: Resolution and invoice 

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

WHEREAS, allocated American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funds remain available 

for use in accordance with applicable law and restriction; and 

 WHEREAS, of the total ARPA funds allocated, $1,628.727.00, the total spent to 

date is $579,667.18; and  

 WHEREAS, an eligible use of a portion of such funds is to reimburse the 

Texarkana Regional Airport for $33,000.00 incurred in connection with the Terminal 

Parking Lot construction; and  

WHEREAS, the City Manager and staff recommend approval;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the reimbursement described herein is approved and, further, 

all applicable City budgets are appropriately amended.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 2nd day of October 2023.   

 

       ___________________________ 

             Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 

 







 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance amending the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, Code 

of Ordinances Chapter 9-7, for the sale and discharge of fireworks for 

any person under the age of 18 years old. (TAPD) Police Chief Michael 

Kramm 

AGENDA DATE: October 2, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Police Department 

PREPARED BY: Michael Kramm, Police Chief  

REQUEST: To amend the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, Code of Ordinances Chapter 

9-7, for the sale and discharge of fireworks for any person under the age 

of 18 years old. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: To amend the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, Code of Ordinances Chapter 

9-7, for the sale and discharge of fireworks for any person under the age 

of 18 years old. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $0.00 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $0.00 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$0.00 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Approval by the Board of Directors  

EXHIBITS: Ordinance  

 



ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE 9 OF 

THE CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS, CODE 

OF ORDINANCES; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, and its police department have 

received numerous complaints of juveniles discharging fireworks in a dangerous manner 

within the city limits; and 

WHEREAS, fireworks involve explosives that may cause serious injury when used 

inappropriately; and  

WHEREAS, the discharge of fireworks within the city limits is prohibited; and 

WHEREAS, the Texarkana, Arkansas Police Department has requested an 

amendment to the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, Code of Ordinances, (the “Code”) to 

address the sale, possession, and discharge of fireworks by minors.   

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas:  

 

Section 1. The following is hereby added to the code as Sec. 9-7.2: 

 

Sec. 9-7.2. – Sale, possession, and discharge of fireworks by minors.  

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person, business, or entity to sell or give away any fireworks 

of any kind or character whatsoever to any person under the age of 18 years of age within 

the limits of this city.   

(b) It shall be unlawful for any person under the age of 18 years of age to possess fireworks 

of any kind or character whatsoever within the limits of this city.  

(c) Fireworks of any kind or character whatsoever found in the possession of a person under 

the age of 18 years of age, not under the supervision of a legal guardian, may be confiscated 

by a certified law enforcement officer and immediately destroyed.  



Section 2.  Except as specifically amended herein, the Code remains in full force 

and effect. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 2nd day of October 2023. 

 

 

 

 ______________________________ 

  Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

 

 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 

 

 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution appointing three (3) members of the Board of 

Directors to the Ark-Tex Council of Governments (ATCOG). (CCD) 

City Clerk Heather Soyars 

AGENDA DATE: October 2, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars 

REQUEST: Appointments to the Ark-Tex Council of Governments  

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: ATCOG bylaws state that ‘each member City Government with a 

population of 10,000 or more shall have three Directors who shall be 

elected officials appointed by the City Council.’ 

The ATCOG Directors will serve a 2-year term, beginning on June 1 of 

the year appointed. 

Director Jeff Hart’s term has expired. 

 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

EXHIBITS: Resolution and Bylaws 

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

WHEREAS, vacancies exist on the Ark-Tex Council of Governments; and 

WHEREAS, this Board requires three (3) elected officials to be appointed; and  

 WHEREAS, it is necessary that the appointment of three (3) members of the Board 

of Directors be made to fill the vacant positions; and  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the following appointments to the Ark-Tex Council of 

Governments is hereby approved: 

 

BOARD OF DRIECTORS        TERM 

 06/01/2023----2025 

 06/01/2023----2025 

 06/01/2023----2025 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 2nd day of October 2023.   

 

 

       ______________________________ 

             Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 

















 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution making appointments to the Advertising and 

Promotion Commission (A&P). (CCD) City Clerk Heather Soyars 

AGENDA DATE: October 2, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars 

REQUEST: Appointments to the A&P Commission 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Making appointments to the A&P Commission  

 

Board or Commission Applicant Term 

Advertising & 

Promotion Commission 

Dr. Ellen Holmes 

At large position 

 

03/21/2022----2026 

Advertising & 

Promotion Commission 

 

Randy Henry 

 

03/21/2023----2027 

Advertising & 

Promotion Commission 

 

Allison Wright 

 

03/21/2023----2027 

 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

EXHIBITS: Resolution, A&P list, and applications 

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

WHEREAS, vacancies exist on the Advertising and Promotion Commission 

(A&P); and 

 WHEREAS, it is necessary that appointments be made to fill the vacant A&P 

positions;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the following appointments are hereby approved: 

            

APPLICANT 

 

TERM 

Dr. Ellen Holmes 

(At large position) 

03/21/2022----2026 

Randy Henry 03/21/2023----2027 

Allison Wright 03/21/2023----2027 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 2nd day of October, 2023.  

  

       ___________________________ 

              Allen l. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 

 



Updated 09272023 

ADVERTISING & PROMOTION COMMISSION 

Authorized by A.C.A. 26-75-605---608, and Texarkana Code 25-20 

4 – YEAR TERMS 
 

 Appointment Term Date Term Ward 

     

Meredith Mills 

1651 MC 244  

903-748-7270 

Resolution No. 2021-38 

Appointment 

 

03/21/2021----2025 1  

     

Director Ulysses Brewer 

P.O. Box 235 

870-773-0276 

870-571-6125 

Resolution No. 2023-1 

Reappointment 

 

Board of Directors 

2-Year Term 

01/2023----2025 

2 4 

     

Director Steven Hollibush 

1115 Garland Avenue 

678-848-2033 

Resolution No. 2023-1 

Reappointment 

 

Board of Directors 

2-Year Term 

01/2023----2025 

2 3 

     

Lisa VandeGraaf 

4211 Savannah Circle 

903-280-3091 

Resolution No. 2023-69 

Appointment  

 

03/21/2022----2026 

 
1 4 

     

VACANCY  

At Large Position 

 

 03/21/2022----2026 

 
  

     

VACANCY 

 

 03/21/2023----2027   

     

VACANCY 

 

 03/21/2023----2027   

 

7 – Members composed of: 

4 – owners or manager of hotels/motel, restaurants, or tourism  

2 – Board of Directors 

1 – at large  

 










	Top
	1.	service awards
	item_10022023_ccd_employee service awards

	2.	proclamation
	item_10022023_ccd_black restaurant week_proclamation

	3.	minutes
	item_10022023_ccd_minutes
	item_2_09182023_minutes

	4.	TAPERS
	item_3_10022023_ccd_tapers
	Item 5 Appointment
	2022_TAPERS

	5.	set date for public hearing (Fricks)
	item_10022023_pwd_agenda_ROW Wooten 2nd Fricks
	Item 4 Public Hearing on ROW
	item_10022023_pwd_ROW Wootens 2nd Atlas Map
	item_10022023_pwd_Memo to CM for ROW Wooten 2nd Fricks

	6.	twu - delaware st
	item_5_10022023_twu_agenda_Delaware St WL Replacement
	Item Delaware Street Replace Upsize Water Main Project
	item_10022023_twu_Delaware St Bid Tabs
	item_10022023_twu_BID TAB Delaware Street Replace Water Main
	item_10022023_twu_Delaware St WL Replacement Bid Summary ATTH01

	7.	Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Purchase Agreement with McLarty Ford. for a F-150 Pick-Up Truck.
	item_6_10022023_pwd_Agenda_Pick-Up Truck
	Item F150 Truck
	McLarty Ford Bid
	Hope Auto Company Inc. Bid
	South West Auto Collection Bid

	8.	Airport reimnbursement
	item_10022023_fin_Airport Reimbursement from ARPA Funds
	Item 3 Airport Reimbursement
	10.2.23 - Airport Reimbursement from ARPA Funds

	9.	fireworks
	item_10022023_tapd_fireworks
	Item 7 - Juvenile Fireworks

	10.	ATCOG memberships
	item_10_10022023_ccd_ATCOG
	Item 8 Appointment Ark-Tex Council of Governments
	ATCOG Board Bylaws

	11.	A&P appointments
	item_11_10022023_ccd_A&P
	Item A&P Commission Appointments
	item_10022023_ccd_A&P member list
	item_10022023_ccd_A&P_Dr. Ellen Holmes
	item_10022023_ccd_A&P_Randy Henry
	item_10022023_ccd__A&P_Allison Wright

	Bottom

